
Ds:CPC/2015/2015-06-16 Minutes.doc   

CITY OF RICHARDSON 

CITY PLAN COMMISSION MINUTES – JUNE 16, 2015 

 

The Richardson City Plan Commission met on June 16, 2015, at 7:00 p.m. at City Hall in the 

Council Chambers, 411 W. Arapaho Road, Richardson, Texas. 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Barry Hand, Chairman 

  Gerald Bright, Vice Chair 

  Janet DePuy, Commissioner 

  Bill Ferrell, Commissioner 

  Marilyn Frederick, Commissioner 

  Randy Roland, Commissioner 

  Stephen Springs, Alternate 

 

MEMBER ABSENT: Thomas Maxwell, Commissioner  

  

CITY STAFF PRESENT: Sam Chavez, Assistant Director – Dev. Svcs. - Planning 

  Israel Roberts, Development Manager 

  Chris Shacklett, Senior Planner  

  Cindy Wilson, Administrative Secretary 

 

BRIEFING SESSION 
 

Prior to the start of the regular business meeting, the City Plan Commission met with staff regarding 

staff reports and agenda items.  No action was taken. 

 

MINUTES 

 

1. Approval of the minutes of the regular business meeting of June 2, 2015. 
 

Chairman Hand noted a request had been made to correct the motion for Item 5 to show 

Commission DePuy as making the motion.   

 

Motion: Commissioner DePuy made a motion to approve the minutes as corrected; second by 

Commissioner Frederick.  Motion approved 7-0. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 
All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the City Plan Commission 

and will be enacted by one motion in the form listed below. There will be no separate discussion of these 

items unless desired, in which case any item(s) may be removed from the Consent Agenda for separate 

consideration. 

 

2. Amending Plat – Bush Central Station Addition, Lot 1B, Block I:  A request for approval of 

an amending plat for a single lot, having 11.62 acres of land located at 1201 State Street; the 

southwest corner of President George Bush Highway and Plano Road. 

 

3. Amending Plat – Bush Central Station Addition, Lot 2A, Block H, and Lot 3A, Block X:  A 

request for approval of an amending plat for two lots totaling 3.44 acres, located at 1150 State 



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes 

June 16, 2015 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2015/2015-06-16 Minutes.doc  2 

Street and 1230 State Street respectively; the northeast corner of Routh Creek Parkway and Hill 

Street. 

 

4. Amended Master Sign Plan – CityLine: A request for approval of an amendment to the 

Master Sign Plan for CityLine.  The nearly 35 acre site is located south of President George 

Bush Highway, between Plano Road and the DART Light Rail Line. 

 

Motion: Commissioner Roland made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented; 

second by Commissioner Ferrell.  Motion approved 7-0. 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

5. Replat – Kaufman Brownstone Addition:  Consider and take necessary action on a request for 

approval of a replat of Lots 2 – 6, Block 23 of the Original Town of Richardson and previously 

abandoned alley right-of-way to reflect the development of nine (9) townhome lots and two (2) 

common area lots.  The 0.6-acre site is located at the southwest corner of Greenville Avenue 

and Kaufman Street. 

 

Mr. Roberts stated the applicant was requesting approval of a replat to reflect the development 

of nine (9) townhome lots and two (2) common area lots in the Original Town of Richardson.  

He added that the proposed replat met the City’s subdivision design standards as well as the 

requirements of the Main Street/Central Expressway form based code approved in January 

2015. 

 

Chairman Hand asked if the alley on the replat was new or existing 

 

Mr. Roberts replied that everything was new. 

 

With no further questions for staff, Chairman Hand opened the public hearing. 

 

No comments were received in favor or opposed and Chairman Hand closed the public hearing. 

 

Motion: Vice Chair Bright made a motion to approve Item 5 as presented; second by 

Commissioner Springs.  Motion approved 7-0.  

 

6. Replat – Galatyn Park North Addition, Lot 5B and 6, Block B:  Consider and take necessary 

action on a request for approval of a replat of Lot 5A, Block B of the Galatyn Park North 

Addition into two (2) lots.  The 6.32-acre site is located at 1551 E. Renner Road and 1550 E. 

Cityline Drive, northwest corner of Renner Road and Foxboro Drive. 

 

Mr. Roberts advised the proposed replat would subdivide existing Lot 5A into two lots, dedicate 

easements for future development and right-of-way for the extension of Foxboro Drive.  He 

added that the replat complied with the City’s subdivision standards. 

 

With no questions for staff, Chairman Hand opened the public hearing. 

 



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes 

June 16, 2015 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2015/2015-06-16 Minutes.doc  3 

No comments were received in favor or opposed and Chairman Hand closed the public hearing. 

 

Motion: Commissioner Roland made a motion to approve Item 6 as presented; second by Vice 

Chair Bright.  Motion approved 7-0. 

 

7. Zoning File 15-12 – Free Play Arcade:  Consider and take necessary action on a request for 

approval of a Special Permit for an amusement arcade to be located at 1730 E. Belt Line Road, 

south side of Belt Line Road, west of Yale Boulevard.  The property is currently zoned LR-

M(2) Local Retail. 

 

Mr. Shacklett stated the applicant was requesting a Special Permit for a 5,000 square foot 

amusement arcade in an existing 61,000 square foot retail shopping center located on the south 

side of Belt Line Road, west of Yale Boulevard.   

 

Mr. Shacklett noted that the applicant was proposing a retro arcade where customers could play 

arcade games and the games would also be available for purchase.  In addition, there would be 

an office and a small concession area serving non-alcoholic beverages as well as beer and wine 

upon approval of a permit from the Texas Alcoholic Beverage Commission (TABC).   

 

Regarding alcohol sales, Mr. Shacklett pointed out that the City’s code allows for the sale of 

alcoholic beverages assuming certain requirements were met and the site complied with those 

requirements. 

 

Mr. Shacklett concluded his presentation by reviewing some of the items discussed with the 

applicant including:  hours of operation, parking study and ratio, and age restrictions (13 or 

under with parent, 17 or under leaving the arcade by 9:00 p.m.).  He added that 16 letters in 

opposition had been received with the concerns ranging from the site becoming a hangout for 

minors, sales of alcoholic beverages, to lack of updates to the retail center. 

 

With no questions for staff, Chairman Hand opened the public hearing. 

 

Mr. Cory Hyden, 1231 Northlake Drive, Richardson, Texas, said he started out as an arcade 

fanatic before transitioning his hobby to a high-end business and was currently looking for a 

“showroom” type location to show case the business as well as to have a place for customers to 

play the games.  In addition, he was not targeting teenage audiences and most of the purchasers 

and future customers would be older individuals who have the money to pay for the arcade 

games.  He added that his company was the largest retro arcade game dealer in Texas and 

possibly the southwest.   

 

Mr. Hyden addressed the concerns expressed about the shopping center by stating his company 

would be spending a great deal of money making changes to their lease space to help bring 

high-end game purchasers to the area.  He added that their license from TABC would be a 

mixed beverage permit; however, they would be selling only beer and wine in addition to non-

alcoholic drinks, which is similar to the license held by the Alamo Drafthouse. 

 



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes 

June 16, 2015 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2015/2015-06-16 Minutes.doc  4 

Commissioner DePuy asked if similar businesses were in the area and what was the customer 

base like for those businesses. 

 

Mr. Hyden replied there were locations in Garland and Richardson that handled on-line sales 

only and almost the entire customer base were doctors, engineers and others who could afford 

the games. 

 

Commissioner Frederick asked if the games would be for sale or could someone lease them.  

She also wanted to know if the proposed business could be compared to a billiards showroom. 

 

Mr. Hyden said he had considered leasing the games, but was not leasing them at the current 

time.  Regarding the comparison between a billiards showroom and the proposed business, Mr. 

Hyden stated he was hoping to set up the business similar to an old style arcade to capture that 

nostalgia. 

 

Commissioner Frederick asked what the price point would be on the games. 

 

Mr. Hyden replied the prices ranged from $1,000 to $10,000, with an average sale of 

approximately $2,000 to $2,500. 

 

Vice Chair Bright asked if the applicant had set up or seen a business similar to what was being 

proposed. 

 

Mr. Hyden said he had not set up a similar business, but had seen similar businesses in other 

metropolitan areas across the country.   

 

Commissioner Ferrell asked if the games would be refurbished or were the manufacturers still 

making the games.  He also questioned whether letting someone play a refurbished game would 

affect the viability of the game and would the applicant service the machines after the sale. 

 

Mr. Hyden replied all the games would be refurbished and if one of the games were purchased, 

he and his partners would go back and check the game’s condition before releasing it to the 

customer.  Regarding servicing the game machines, Mr. Hyden said they would not send out a 

service technician for purchased machines, but had considered letting customers drop them off 

for servicing. 

 

Commissioner Ferrell asked if the arcade would have a maximum occupancy. 

 

Mr. Hyden said they thought the number of people allowed in the arcade would be around 160. 

 

Commissioner DePuy asked if the applicant had met with the adjacent homeowners association 

and if their concerns had been discussed. 

 

Mr. Hyden replied he met with the Berkner Homeowners Association (HOA) board of directors 

for approximately two hours and felt the directors were more at ease with their business model. 

 



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes 

June 16, 2015 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2015/2015-06-16 Minutes.doc  5 

Commissioner Ferrell asked if prizes would be offered. 

 

Mr. Hyden said tickets and a prize counter were not part of their business plan, but they may 

have “highest score” competitions where a t-shirt would be awarded as a prize, but nothing else. 

 

Commissioner Roland asked if eight-liners or other gaming machines would be sold. 

 

Mr. Hyden replied those type of games would not be part of their arcade. 

 

Commissioner Frederick asked how many staff people would be needed in the business to 

insure that minors, even if with their parents, did not partake of any of the alcoholic beverages. 

 

Mr. Hyden said that although they were still in a learning mode as to when their busiest times 

would be, they anticipated 4 to 10 employees would be needed. 

 

Vice Chair Bright asked if the other arcades in metropolitan areas were located in strip retail 

centers. 

 

Mr. Hyden stated the Houston arcade was originally in a strip retail center, but they had recently 

constructed their own free-standing building. 

 

Chairman Hand asked the applicant to define the term “retro arcade” and how that would impact 

the type of games in their business. 

 

Mr. Hyden said most of his games were made between 1978 and 1995. 

 

Ms. Kelsie Hyden, 1231 Northlake Drive, Richardson, Texas, stated she was Mr. Hyden’s wife 

and the sister of the second applicant, Mr. Richard Tregilgas.  She wanted the Commission to 

know that her family had been long time residents of Richardson and they were not interested in 

starting a business that would not be beneficial to the city. 

 

Chairman Hand called for any other comments in favor and with no other favorable comments, 

called for those opposed. 

 

Ms. Diana Klauson, 800 Westminster, Richardson, Texas, said she was concerned that the strip 

retail center was run down and in terrible condition and there were already too many 

establishments selling alcohol in the center.  She suggested the proposed business would 

possibly fit better in CityLine or a newer development. 

 

Ms. Carmen Herndon, 1500 Creekside, Richardson, Texas, stated her major concern was based 

on the fact the retail center was surrounded by residential homes, but she might be a little bit 

more in favor if the business was more family oriented and set up as a restaurant as opposed to 

just offering bar food.   

 

Ms. Gayla Partlow, 1308 Grinnelle Drive, Richardson, Texas, stated she was curious as to why 

the applicant thought the proposed location would be the best site for their business.  



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes 

June 16, 2015 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2015/2015-06-16 Minutes.doc  6 

 

With no further comments in favor or opposed, Chairman Hand advised the applicant he could 

answer or rebut any statement made. 

 

Mr. Hyden said that at end of the day if no one came to the business to play the games the 

business would still be profitable.  He added the proposed location was the only lease space to 

meet all their needs and felt their business would help to revitalize the retail center. 

 

Commissioner Roland asked if people subscribing to their three-month trial periods for games in 

their homes made the business profitable.  

 

Mr. Hyden replied the opportunity to open the showroom happened first, but they were still 

looking at the possibility of leasing the machines.   

 

Chairman Hand closed the public hearing. 

 

Chairman Hand asked staff if the dashed lines on the floor plan represented walls to be 

removed.   

 

Mr. Shacklett replied he thought the lines did not indicate anything specific and were simply 

areas where counters and a workroom may be placed. 

 

Vice Chair Bright wanted to confirm that “eight-liners” or gambling machines would not be 

allowed. 

 

Mr. Shacklett replied that the State of Texas did allow those types of machines for entertainment 

purposes only, but there were stringent restrictions on the type of payout (non-cash 

merchandise) as well as cost to play.  He added the applicant had stated it was not his intention 

to have those types of machines in his business and if the Commission was concerned about 

those machines, that could be addressed in the special conditions. 

 

Vice Chair Bright asked if customers would be allowed to bring their drinks into the same area 

as the arcade games. 

 

Mr. Hyden replied it was their intention to allow the customers to move freely about the arcade 

with whatever they purchased. 

 

Commission DePuy asked about the style of food that would be served. 

 

Mr. Hyden said they would be providing an upscale twist on snack bar type food (i.e., roasted 

garlic and spinach nachos, grilled Gouda cheese sandwich with mushrooms and onions, etc.). 

 

Commissioner DePuy stated she had read the letters of concern from the HOA, but pointed out 

the lease space was, by right, allowed to have alcohol sales.  She also noted that a retail center 

close to her home had been in similar shape, but revitalization had taken place after a different, 

upscale tenant came to the center. 



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes 

June 16, 2015 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2015/2015-06-16 Minutes.doc  7 

 

Mr. Shacklett concurred that a restaurant with alcohol sales was allowed by-right in the lease 

space as well as private clubs as long as the restaurant secured a permit from the TABC and met 

the City’s building code requirements. 

 

Vice Chair Bright said he thought the business concept was unique and was in favor of the item, 

but did want to have the use of gambling machines restricted. 

 

Mr. Shacklett confirmed that the State of Texas Penal Code, Section 47 did list the “eight-

liners” as gaming devices associated with giving out prizes. 

 

Commissioner Roland stated that looking at the examples of other arcades in the state, it did not 

seem that gaming devices were part of the applicant’s business plan.  He also pointed out that 

the area was starting to see some revitalization and the proposed showroom could add to that. 

 

Commissioner Frederick said she agreed with most of the comments, but noted that in the past 

the Commission had tied some Special Permits to an applicant and wondered if it would be 

appropriate for the proposed business. 

 

Mr. Shacklett replied the current special conditions did not tie the permit to the applicant, but 

the Commission could add that requirement to the special conditions. 

 

Chairman Hand asked if the applicant was opposed to having the Special Permit tied to his 

name or the business. 

 

Mr. Hyden said he did not object and suggested tying it to the business. 

 

Mr. Chavez suggested it might be better to have the Special Permit tied to the applicant so if the 

business was sold but the business name remained the same, the new owner would have to come 

before the Commission with their business plan and consideration for a new Special Permit. 

 

Mr. Hyden asked that the permit be tied to himself and his business partner, Richard Tregilgas. 

 

Commissioner Ferrell thanked those in attendance for coming out and commenting on the item, 

and the applicants for their desire to open a business in Richardson. 

 

Chairman Hand said initially he was very cautious about approving the request, but felt the 

proposed business might be a factor in the revitalization of the retail center. 

 

Motion: Vice Chair Bright made a motion to recommend approval of Item 7 as presented with 

the additional condition that no “eight-liner” type gaming devices be allowed and the 

Special Permit would be tied to Cory Hyden and Richard Tregilgas; second by 

Commissioner Roland.  Motion approved 7-0. 

 

 

 



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes 

June 16, 2015 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2015/2015-06-16 Minutes.doc  8 

ADJOURN 

 

With no further business before the Commission, Chairman Hand adjourned the regular 

business meeting at 8:25 p.m. 

 

 

 

_______________________ 

Barry Hand, Chairman 

City Plan Commission 


